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June 17, 2009 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Capital Area Transit System 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of Capital Area Transit System (tlae 
"System"), a component unit ofthe City of Baton Rouge - Parish of East Baton Rouge, and the Capital 
Area Transit System's Employees' Pension Trust Fund (a fiduciary fund ofthe System) as of and for 
the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, which collectively comprise the System's basic 
financial statements as hsted in the table of contents. These fmancial statements are the responsibility 
of tlie System's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted m the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboirt whether the financial statements are 
fiee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, m all material respects, tlie 
respective fmancial position ofthe System and its fiduciary fund as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash fiows, where applicable, thereof for the years 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assummg that the System will continue as 
a going concern. As shown in the financial statements, the System incurred net losses before capital 
contributions of $668,127 and $2,027,562 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Current habilities exceed 
current assets by $105,887 and $1,021,773 at December31, 2008 and 2007. Those conditions mise 
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substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans regarding those 
matters are described in Note 13, The fmancial statements do not mclude any adjustments that might 
result fi"om the outcome of this uncertainty. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 17, 
2009 on our consideration ofthe System's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over 
fmancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on tlie 
intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 6 and the Pension Trend Information 
in Schedule 1 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary 
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We 
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. 
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Respectfully submitted, 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year ended December 31,2008 

This section ofthe System's armual fmancial report presents a discussion and analysis ofthe System's 
financial performance during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, Please read this section in 
conjuncfion with the System's financial statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

• The System's net assets are $3,109,174 as of December 31, 2008, representing an uicrease of 
$315,002 or 11% fiom that of December 31, 2007. A substantial portion ofthe net assets are 
invested in capital assets, 

• Net losses before capital contributions were $668,127 and $2,027,562 for 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This financial report consists of four parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements, the notes to the fmancial statements, and required supplementary 
information. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the System's overall 
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some ofthe information in the 
fmancial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of other 
supplementary mformation that fiirther explains and supports the information in the fmancial 
statements requhed by GASB 25. The System maintains two different fimds: a proprietary fimd and a 
fiduciary fimd. 

The System is a component imit of the City of Baton Rouge - Parish of East Baton Rouge (City-
Parish), 

Proprietary Fund, The System has one type of proprietary fimd, an enterprise fimd, which is used to 
report the same fimctions presented as business-type activities; for the System, the fund accoimts for 
all transit activity. The basic proprietary fimd statements can be foimd on pages 7 through 10 of this 
report. 

The System's proprietary fiind financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with 
accoimting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
govemment units. Under this basis of accoimting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they 
are eamed, expenses are recognized in the period m which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets 
is recognized in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. All assets and 
liabilities associated with the operation ofthe System are included in the Statement of Net Assets. 

The Statement of Net Assets reports the System's net assets. Net assets, which is the difference 
between the System's assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the System's financial health or 
position. The net assets are classified into three categories: invested in capital assets, restricted, and 
tmrestricted. 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year ended December 31, 2008 

Fiduciary Fund, The System has one type of fiduciary fund, a pension trust fimd, which is used to 
account for resources, held for the benefit of parties outside the govenunent. The fiduciary fund assets 
are not available to finance transit operations. The accoimting used for fiduciary fimds is much like 
that used for proprietary fimds. The basic fiduciary fimd statements can be found on pages 11 through 
12 of this report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SYSTEM: 

Net Assets 
The System's total net assets at December 31, 2008 increased from $2,794,172 to $3,109,174. Table A-
1 summarizes the System's net assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. 

The increase in net assets is primarily due to the decrease hi net loss before capital contributions. 
Restricted assets represent cash reserved to meet current fiduciary liabilities, primarily related to self 
insured vehicle and worker's compensation claims. The System does not own land and buildings; 
rather, the City-Parish provides the System with the use of its administrative building and terminal 
facility. 

Long-term liabilities decreased from $6,790,945 to $6,315,212 as a resuh of current year payments for 
the capital lease obligations entered into during 2004 for the upgrade to the bus fleet. Future federal 
grants are anticipated as the fimding source for these leases. Management's budget indicate that the 
System's operations will generate adequate cash flow for the 2009 fiscal year. 

Table A-1 
Capital Area Transit System's Net Assets 

December 31,2008 and 2007 

Current Unrestricted Assets 
Restricted Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 
Equipment, Net 
Net Pension Assets, Long-term 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current 
Long-term Claims Payable and Related Liabilities 
Long-term Other Liabilities 

Net Assets - Invested in Capital Assets 
Net Assets - Restricted 
Net Assets - Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

$ 

s= 

$ 

$ 

2008 
2,548,825 $ 

105,718 
2,654,543 
7,659,471 
1,765,084 

12,079,098 S_ 

2,654,712 $ 
902,222 

5,412,990 

8,969,924 

2,009,205 
105,718 
994,251 

3,109,174 

12,079,098 $ 

(as Restated) 
2007 

2,454,605 
29,941 

2,484.546 
8,908,465 
1,668,484 

13,061,495 

3,476,378 
779,413 

6,011,532 

10,267,323 

2,655,344 
29,941 

108,887 
2,794,172 

13,061,495 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year ended December 31,2008 

Changes In Net Assets 
The System's operating revenues mcreased from the prior year amount of $4,602,772 to $4,754,396 or 
3.29%. This increase is primarily attributable to an increase in revenues generated from contract 
services as the resuh of a rate increase in July of 2008. 

Direct operating expenses decreased by $100,514 or .62% to $15,985,004. 

Net non-operating revenues in 2008 increased $1,107,297 or 11.71% as a result of increases in 
operating transfers from City Parish Govemment, the abatement of amounts due to the FTA, and an 
increase ui federal grant money for paratransit services. 

Table A-2 
Capital Area Transit System's Changes is Net Assets 

For the Years ended December 31,2008 and 2007 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for Services 
Advertising Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 
Direct Operating Expenses: 
Operating Expenses 
Depreciation Expense 

Total Direct Operating Expenses 

Loss from Operations 

Nonoperating Revenues, Net: 

Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Other Expenses 
Abated Prior Years Questioned Costs-Federal 
Govemment Operating Grants 
Hotel/Motel Tax 
Forgiveness of Interest on FTA Debt 
Other Revenue 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 
Operating Transfers from City-Parish 

Total Nonoperatkig Revenues 

2008 

$4,744,508 
9,888 

4,754,396 

14,439,557 
1,545,447 

15,985,004 

(11,230,608) 

6,288 
(316,863) 

(5,523) 
355,012 

4,616,388 
1,524,604 
109,877 
78,168 
-

4,194,530 

10,562,481 

(as Restated) 
2007 

$ 4,593,813 
8,959 

4,602,772 

14,390,094 
1,695,424 

16,085,518 

(11,482,746) 

6,028 
(384,135) 

-

-

4,473,854 
1,330,562 

-

291,495 
(9,820) 

3,747,200 

9,455,184 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year ended December 31, 2008 

Net Loss Before Capital Contributions (668,127) (2,027,562) 
Capital Contributions 983,129 761,518 

Net Income (Loss) after Capital Contributions 315,002 (1,266,044) 
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as Restated 2,794,172 4,060,216 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 3,109,174 $ 2,794,172 

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK 
The 2009 budget has been revised for the loss of significant revenue due to the expiration and 
nonrenewal of a major contract for services. Expenses, primarily in the transit operations and 
maintenance departments, will be reduced to counter the loss of operating revenue as the result of the 
expfring contact. The System anticipates federal grant revenues, taxes, and transfers from the City-
Parish will remain constant. The System plans to maintain a carefiil watch over expenditures to help 
alleviate some of the expenses attributable to transit operations, such as rising fiiel costs and 
maintenance of vehicles. Overall, the System is budgeted to operate at a break-even position. 

CONTACTING THE SYSTEM'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
This financial report is designed to provide the community, the Metro Council of the City-Parish, and 
other interested parties with a general overview of the System's finances and to demonstrate the 
System's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the System at (225) 389-8920. 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

BALANCE SHEETS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from Other Governments 
Inventory 

Total Current Assets 

2008 

$ 1,072,172 

61,040 

828,772 

586,841 

(As Restated) 

2007 

$ 322,641 

70,081 

1,493,762 

568,121 

2,548,825 2,454,605 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Restricted Assets 

105,718 

105,718 

29,941 

29,941 

Net Pension Asset, Long-Term 
Equipment, Net 

Total Assets 

1,765,084 
7,659,471 

1,668,484 
8,908,465 

$ 12,079,098 $ 13,061,495 

The accompanyhig notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

2008 

$ 855,682 
375,485 
263,728 
526,949 
632,868 

(As Restated) 
2007 

$ 846,696 
1,226,027 

240,843 
559,958 
602,854 

Current Liabilities: 
Accoimts Payable and Accmed Expenses 
Due to Federal Transit Administration 
Accmed Compensated Absences 
Claims Payable and Related Liabilities 
Capital Lease Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 2,654,712 3,476,378 

Long-Term Liabilities: 
Accmed Compensated Absences, Less Current Portion 
Claims Payable and Related Liabilities, Less Current Portion 
Capital Lease Payable, Less Current Portion 

395,592 
902,222 

5,017,398 

361,265 
779,413 

5,650,267 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets: 
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Umestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

6,315,212 

8,969,924 

2,009,205 
105,718 
994,251 

3,109,174 

$ 12,079,098 

6,790,945 

10,267,323 

2,655,344 
29,941 

108,887 

2,794,172 

$ 13,061,495 



CAPriAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

2008 
Operating Revenues: 

Charges for Services 
Advertising Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Direct Operating Expenses: 
Personal Services and Fringe Benefits 
Supplies, Fuel and Other Bus Related Expenses 
Contractual Services & Liability Costs 
Depreciation 

Total Direct Operatmg Expenses 

Loss from Operations 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Other Expense 
Abated Prior Years Questioned Costs-Federal Grants 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 
Forgiveness of Interest on FTA Debt 
Hotel/Motel Tax 
Other Revenue 
Govemment Operating Grants: 

Federal Operating Subsidy 
Planning and Technical Study Grants 
Operating Transfers from Primary Govemment 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Loss Before Capital Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Net Income (Loss) after Capital Contributions 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as Restated 

Net Assets, End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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$ 4,744,508 
9,888 

4,754,396 

(As Restated) 
2007 

$ 4,593,813 
8,959 

4,602,772 

7,766,803 

2,636,704 

4,036,050 

1,545,447 

15,985,004 

(11,230,608) 

6,288 

(316,863) 

(5,523) 

355,012 

-

109,877 

1,524,604 

78,168 

4,524,247 

92,141 

4,194,530 

10,562,481 

(668,127) 

983,129 

315,002 

2,794,172 

$ 3,109,174 

8,251,228 

2,233,400 

3,905,466 

1,695,424 

16,085,518 

(11,482,746) 

6,028 

(384,135) 

-

-

(9,820) 

-

1,330,562 

291,495 

4,332,602 

141,252 

3,747,200 

9,455,184 

(2,027,562) 

761,518 

(1,266,044) 

4,060,216 

$ 2,794,172 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities; 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Received from Other Sources 
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Others 
Cash Paid to Employees for Compensation and Related Expenses 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities: 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Subsidies Received from Other Governments 
Hotel-Motel Tax 
Other Revenue 
Operating Transfers Primary Govemment 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Capital Contributions Received 
Payments on Capital Leases 
Proceeds From Insurance Settiement 
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets 
Interest Paid on Capital Debt 

Net Cash Used in Capital Fuiancing Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 

Interest Received 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Reconciliation of Cash as Listed on the Balance Sheet: 
Unrestricted Cash 
Restricted Cash 

2008 

$ 4,753,549 
9,888 

(6,548,458) 
(7,844,176) 

(9,629,197) 

4,674,562 
1,721,368 

78,168 
4,194,530 

10,668,628 

983,129 
(602,855) 

-

(294,440) 
(306,245) 

(As Restated) 
2007 

$ 4,785,854 
8,959 

(6,572,303) 
(8,350,510) 

(10,128,000) 

4,730,534 
1,308,851 

291,495 
3,747,200 

10,078,080 

761,518 
(590,678) 

38,031 
-

(312,691) 

(220,411) 

6,288 

6,288 

825,308 

352,582 

(103,820) 

6,028 

6,028 

(147,712) 

500,294 

$ 1,177,890 $ 352,582 

1,072,172 
105,718 

322,641 
29,941 

$ 1,177,890 $ 352,582 

(CONTINUED) 
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Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to Net Cash Used in 
Operating Activities: 

Loss from Operations 
Adjustments to Reconcile Loss from Operations 

to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Assets 
(Increase) Decrease in Net Pension Asset 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable, Accmed 

Expenses, and Deferred Revenues 
Increase (Decrease) in the Provision for Claims Liability 

Net Cash Used hi Operating Activities 

2008 

$ (11,230,608) 

1,545,447 
-

9,041 
-

(96,600) 
(18,720) 

72,443 
89,800 

$ (9,629,197) 

(As Restated) 
2007 

$ (11,482,746) 

1,695,424 
9,820 

(120,739) 
17,471 

(149,253) 
(132,955) 

(96,449) 
131,427 

$ (10,128,000) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements 
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CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUND 

DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

2008 2007 

Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 536,101 $ 609,897 
Receivables 11,715 10,297 
Investments 4,963,127 6,992,801 

Plan Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 5,510,943 $ 7,612,995 

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these financial statements. 
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CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS - PENSION TRUST FUND 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

2008 2007 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

Employer Contributions $ 404,011 $ 438,443 
Employee Contributions 354,086 383,616 

Total Contributions 758,097 822,059 

Investment Income: 
Investment and Dividend Income 
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in Fair Value 

Less Investment Expense 

Net Investment Income (Loss) 

Total Additions (Deductions) 

Deductions: 
Benefits 
Employee Refimds 
Administrative Expenses 

Total Deductions 

Change in Plan Net Assets 

Plan Net Assets at Beginning of Year 

Plan Net Assets at End of Year 

297,089 
r2.591.256) 

(2,294,167) 

(75.091) 

(2.369.258) 

(1,611,161) 

336,753 
91,849 
62.289 

490,891 

(2,102,052) 

7.612.995 

J 5,510,943 

298,337 
r61.99n 

236,346 

(95,020) 

141.326 

963,385 

303,231 
265,654 

70.474 

639.359 

324,026 

7.288.969 

$ 7,612,995 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -

Report Issued Under Separate Coverage 

The Capital Area Transit System's ("the System") financial statements are an integral part of the 
City of Baton Rouge - Parish of East Baton Rouge's (City-Parish) Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR). The System has an operating agreement with the City Parish that 
addresses the use of City-Parish facilities as well as other operating matters. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

Capital Area Transit System is a corporation created by East Baton Rouge Parish to provide bus 
transportation services. In 2004, the Louisiana State Legislature enacted House Bill 1682, Act 581 
to recognize the System as a political subdivision and provide that all its assets are public property. 
The Metropolitan Council exercises oversight over the System by approving fare changes and by 
approvuig operating subsidies from the City-Parish's general fimd. Operating subsidies are also 
provided through federal grants. The fiscal year for the System and the City-Parish govemment is 
the calendar year. 

Govemment Accountmg Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting 
Entity, established criteria for determining which component units should be considered part of the 
City of Baton Rouge - Parish of East Baton Rouge for financial reporting purposes. The basic 
criteria are as follows: 

1. Legal status ofthe potential component unit including the right to incur its own debt, levy of its 
own taxes and charges, expropriate property in its own name, sue and be sued, and the right to 
buy, sell and lease property in its own name. 

2. Whether the City-Parish goveming the System (Metropolitan Council or Mayor President) 
appoints a majority of board members ofthe potential component unit. 

3. Fiscal interdependency between the City-Parish and the potential component unit. 

4. Imposition of will by the City-Parish on the potential component unit. 

5. Financial benefit/burden relationship between the City-Parish and the potential component unit. 

Based on the previous criteria, the System is considered a component unit of the City of Baton 
Rouge, Parish of East Baton Rouge. In addition, based on the previous criteria, the System's 
management has included the Capital Area Transit System's Employees' Pension Tmst Fund as a 
Blended Component Unit within the financial statements ofthe System. 
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The Capital Area Transit System Employees' Pension Tmst Fund (the Tmst) exists for the benefit 
of current and former System employees who are members of the plan. The Tmst is govemed by 
an equal number of Employer Trustees and Union Tmstees. 

Currently, the Tmst is govemed by a four member board composed of two members representing 
the Employer Tmstees and two members elected as Union Tmstees. The Trust is fimded by the 
investment of the contributions from the System and member employees who are obligated to 
make the contributions to the Tmst. The Tmst does not issue a separately issued audit report. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Presentation 

The accounting policies of the System conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applicable to governments. The proprietary fimd and the pension tmst 
fimd financial statements are reported using the economic resource measurement focus and the 
accmal basis of accounting. The System uses fimd accountmg to report its financial position and 
results of operations. The operations of each fimd are accounted for with a set of self balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenue, and expenses. The System has no 
govemmental fimds. A fiirther explanation ofthe funds and their reportkig classifications follows: 

Proprietary Fund 

Enterprise Fund - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations: (a) that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the goveming 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be fmanced or recovered primarily through user charges; or 
(b) where the goveming body has decided that periodic determination of revenue eamed, expenses 
incurred, and/or change in net assets is appropriate for capital mamtenance, public policy, 
management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Accordingly, the System maintauis its records on the accmal basis of accounting. Revenue from 
operations, investments and other sources are recorded when eamed. Revenue received in advance 
is reflected as deferred revenue. Expenses (including depreciation and amortization) of providing 
services to the public are accmed when uicurred. 

The System applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 
in accounting for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 

Fiduciary Fund 

Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the accumulation of contributions for a defined benefit 
single employer pension plan providing retirement benefits to qualified employees. 

The Pension Tmst Fund's financial statements are prepared on the accmal basis of accounting. 
Contributions from the System and its employees are recognized as revenue m the period in which 
employees provide service to the System. Benefits and refimds are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms ofthe plan. 
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Restricted Assets and Liabilities 

Certain assets, consisting of cash and cash equivalents, are segregated and classified as restricted 
assets which may not be used except in accordance with contractual terms, under certain 
conditions. These assets consist of a certificate of deposit restricted for msurance and held by the 
State of Louisiana and cash related to federal grants and related matching. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted prices. The change in fair value is recognized 
in operations. 

Inventories 

Inventories, principally repair parts and supplies, are stated at cost, which approximates market. 
Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. 

Equipment 

Equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation or amortization is charged to expense over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets and is determined using the straight-line method. Expenditures 
for maintenance and repairs which do not materially extend the usefiil life of the assets are charged 
to expense as incurred. Usefiil lives for equipment used in computuig depreciation range from 12 
years for rolling stock to 3 years for certain office equipment. 

Federal Grants and Dedicated Taxes 

Federal grants are made available to the System for the acquisition of public transit facilities, buses 
and other transit equipment. Unrestricted operating grants and grants restricted as to purpose, but 
not contingent on the actual expenditures of fimds, are recognized at that point in time when the 
right to the funds becomes irrevocable. Where the expenditure of fimds is the prime factor for 
determining the eligibility for the grant proceeds, the revenue is recognized at the time when the 
expense is incurred. 

In addition to Federal grants, the System is the recipient of monies established under R.S. 
47:302.29(B) and R.S. 47:322.1, which sets aside the Louisiana State sales tax on hotel occupancy. 
These monies are provided into the East Baton Rouge Parish Community Improvement Fund 
(Improvement Fund). The System's share of these fimds shall not be used to displace, replace or 
supplant funds previously appropriated or otherwise used for urban mass transit purposes. The 
monies in the Improvement Fund are appropriated aimually by the State legislature. In addition, the 
System also receives monies from the East Baton Rouge Enhancement Fund (Enhancement Fund), 
which has similar restrictions and is created by the State legislature. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts according to continuing years of 
service as follows: 
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Years of Service Vacation Sick 

0 None 1 day/month 
1 7 days per year 1 day/month 
2 13 days per year 1 day/month 
6 17 days per year 1 day/month 
15 24 days per year 1 day/month 

Vacation must be taken by December 31, or it is lost for the union employees. For the non-union 
employees unused vacation can be carried forward to the next year. Sick leave is accumulated 
without time limitations and there is no Ihnitation as to the amount paid upon termination or 
retirement. Vacation and sick leave are accmed as eamed. 

Claims and Judgments 

The System provides for losses, includmg any anticipated related expenses, resulting from claims 
and judgments. A liability for such losses, (including related out-of-pocket expenses) is reported 
when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. 

Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all highly 
liquid investments. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Equity Classifications 

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets consists of 
capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstandmg balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, constmction, or improvements of those assets. If 
there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt 
attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested capital 
assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portion ofthe debt is included in the same net assets 
component as the unspent proceeds. 

• Restricted - This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net asset use 
through external constramts imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constramts imposed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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• Unrestricted net assets - This component of net asset consist of net assets that do not meet 
the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

Operating vs. Non-Operating Revenue 

The System recognizes rider fares, contracted fare services and advertising revenue as operating. 
All other revenues, including federal and state grants, and operating subsidies from the primary 
govemment are recognized as non-operating. 

Receivables 

Receivables consist of all revenues eamed at year end and not yet received. Uncollectable accoimts 
receivable are charged off directly against eamings when they are determined to be uncollectable. 
Use of this method does not result in a material difference from the valuation method required by 
general accepted accounting principles. 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts presented in tiie 2007 colunms have been reclassified from prior year's 
presentation to conform to the current year classifications. Such reclassifications had no effect on 
the prior year determination of restricted and unrestricted net assets. 

Note 2 - Cash and Investments -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The System's cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 
2007: 

2008 
Proprietary 
Enterprise 

Fund 

Fiduciary 
Pension Tmst 

Fund Totals 

Cash on Hand and in Banks 
Certificates of Deposit 
Money Market Accounts 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

$ 1,077,099 
100,791 

$ 1,177,890 

Proprietary 
Enterprise 

Fund 

$ -

536,101 

$536,101 

2007 

$ 1,077,099 
100,791 
536,101 

$ 1,713,991 

Fiduciary 
Pension Trust 

Fund Totals 

Cash on Hand and in Banks 
Certificates of Deposit 
Money Market Accounts 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

$ 237,558 
115,024 

$ 352,582 

$ -

609,897 

$ 609,897 

$ 237,558 
115,024 
609,897 

$ 962,479 
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Proprietary Fund cash and cash equivalents of $1,177,890 and $352,582 include $1,072,172 and 
$322,641 of unrestricted assets and $105,718 and $29,941 of restricted assets as of December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that m the event of a bank 
failure, the government's deposits may not be retumed to it. Neither the System nor the Pension 
Trust Fund, a blended presented component unit, has a deposit policy for custodial credh risk. As 
of December 31, 2008, none of the government's bank balance of $1,510,045 was exposed to 
custodial credit risk because it was fully covered by FDIC insurance. As of the same date the 
Pensions Trust Fund held no deposits with exposure to custodial credit risk because it only held 
money market accounts held in tmst that are not categorized under GASB 3 requirements. 

Statutes authorize the System's proprietary fund to invest in direct United States Treasuiy 
obligations; bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness issued or guaranteed by U.S. 
Govemment Instrumentalities which are federally sponsored or federal agencies that are backed by 
the fiill faith and credit of the United States; short-term repurchase agreements; and time 
certificates of deposit at financial uistitutions, state banks and national banks having their principal 
offices in Louisiana. 

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, certificates of deposit of $100,791 and $115,024 were 
pledged as collateral to the Louisiana Office of Workman's Compensation. 

Investments 

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, assets classified as investments existed only in the Pension 
Trust Fund (the Trust). The assets of the Tmst are hivested in accordance with the mvestment 
policy ofthe Plan. Those assets are as follows: 

Fair Values 
2008 2007 

U.S. Treasury and Agency Bonds $ 999,351 $ 860,942 
Corporate Bonds 231,269 201,863 
Corporate Stocks 3,507,668 5,507,692 
Equity Mutual Fund 224,839 422,304 

Total $4,963,127 $6,992,801 

As of December 31, 2008, the debt maturities ofthe Pension Trust Fund's investments were as 
follows: 

Investment Maturities (in Years') 
Fair Less More 

hivestment Type Value Than 1 1 -5 6-10 Than 10 

US Treasury and Agency Funds $ 999,351 $ - $130,029 $117,017 $752,305 
Corporate Bonds 231,269 - 147,482 83,787 -

$1,230,620 $ - $277,511 $200,804 $752,305 
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Interest rate risk. In accordance with its mvestment pohcy, the Pension Tmst Fund manages its 
exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment 
portfolio to less than ten years with a maximum maturity for any single security of 30 years. 

Credit risk. The investment policy of the Pension Trust Fund limits investments in commercial 
paper and corporate bonds to ratings of A-1 and BBB or higher as rated by the nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As of December 31, 2008, the Pension Tmst 
Fund held no commercial paper investments. The Pension Trust Fund's investments in domestic 
corporate bonds as of December 31, 2008 varied between ratings of A and AAA consistent with 
the investment policy. The Pension Trust Fund's investments in U.S. Agencies all carry the 
explicit guarantee ofthe U.S. govemment. 

Concentration ofcredit risk. The Pension Trust Fund's investment policy does not allow for an 
investment in any one issuer that is in excess of fifteen percent ofthe fimd's total investments and 
no more than 30% ofthe total investment in any one industry. 

Custodial credit risk - investments. For an investment this is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure 
of the counterparty, the Pension Trust Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments are exposed to 
custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured and imregistered and are either held by the 
counterparty, or by the counterparty's trust department or agent, but not in the Pension Tmst 
Fund's name. At December 31, 2008, all ofthe Pension Tmst Fimd's investments were held by an 
agent in the name ofthe Pension Tmst Fund. 

Note 3 - Receivables - Due From Other Governments -

Receivables due from other governments at December 31,2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

2008 
(as Restated) 

2007 

Federal Transit Administration 
Hotel - Motel Tax 
Department of Revenue 

Note 4 - Equipment -

A summary of changes in fixed assets follows: 

$ 362,571 
422,212 

43,989 

$ 838,620 
225,448 
429,694 

$ 828,772 $ 1,493,762 

January 1, 
2008 Additions Deletions 

December 31 
2008 

Equipment, Prhnarily 
Transportation Vehicles 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Total 

$ 17,950,697 $ 294,440 $ 
(9,042.232^ r 1,545.447) 

(8,151) $18,236,986 
10.164 (10.577.515) 

$8,908,465 $(1,251,007) $ 2,013 $ 7,659,471 
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January 1, December 31, 
2007 Additions Deletions 2007 

Equipment, Primarily 
Transportation Vehicles $18,061,676 $ - $ (110,979) $17,950,697 

Accumulated Depreciation (7,409,563) (1,695,424) 62,755 (9,042.232) 

Total $10,652,113 $(1,695,424)$ (48,224) $8,908,465 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 totaled $1,545,447 and 
$1,695,424, respectively. The City-Parish (Primary Govemment) owns the terminal, administrative 
office building and related land which are used by the System for its operations. The City-Parish 
provides these facilities and land to the System at no charge through an operating agreement. 

Note 5 - Accounts, Salaries and Other Payables -

The payables at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

2008 2007 

Accounts Payable $ 631,296 $ 578,080 
Accmed Salaries 166,456 174,255 
Employee Insurance and Other 

Witholdings - 30,186 
Accmed Interest 57.930 64,175 

$ 855,682 $ 846,696 

Note 6 - Working Capital -

Operations of the System are subsidized by the Federal and local governments through various 
cash grants and appropriations. These subsidies are reported under the caption of non-operating 
revenue as govemment operating grants and as operating transfers from the primary govemment in 
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 

Note 7 - Pension Plan -

Plan Description - The System, as well as covered employees, makes contributions to the Capital 
Area Transit System Pension Trust Fund (Plan), a defined benefit single employer pension plan. 
The Plan is admimstered by a local actuarial consulting company, under the direction of a Board of 
Trustees. All fiill time employees become eligible for participation upon the date entering covered 
employment. Prior to August 2006, the normal rethement date is the fu:st day of the month 
followmg a member's 65^ birthday and completion of 10 years of service. In August 2006, the plan 
was amended and the age was reduced to 62 years. Benefits vest after ten years of service. A 
participant was entitled to a monthly normal retirement benefit beginning on his normal retirement 
date in an amount of 1.2% of average compensation for each year of service after Febmary 1, 1963. 
Effective August 2006, the Plan was amended and the percentage was changed to 1.4% for all plan 
years beginning January 1, 1991. 

20 



Average compensation is determined as the average of the five consecutive plan years of 
compensation that produces the highest average. Early retirement is permitted for participants who 
have 15 years of service (five of which is after Febmary 1, 1973) and who have attamed age 55; 
early retirement benefits are reduced from normal retirement benefits. Membership, pension 
benefit obligation, and other pension information are obtained from the Plan's Armual Actuarial 
Valuation Reports as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. The valuation is performed at the beginning 
ofthe plan year. 

Current membership is comprised ofthe following at December 31: 
2008 

221 

2007 

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 
Vested Terminated Employees 
Active Employees: 

Fully Vested 
Not Vested 

53 
17 

37 
114 

54 
16 

38 
115 

223 

Funding Policy - The employees and the System each contributed, as required, 7% and 8%, of each 
employee's salary. For the plan year beginning Febmary 1, 1995, the System's pension plan was 
granted "qualified" status by the IRS which enables contributions to the plan to be non-taxable to 
the employee. The plan's long-range ability to pay benefits also depends on the future financial 
health ofthe Corporation. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset - The System's armual pension cost and net pension 
asset for the years ended December 31,2008 and 2007 were as follows: 

2008 2007 

Annual Required Contribution 
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution 

Armual Pension Cost 
Contributions Made Including Interest 

Increase in Net Pension Asset 

$ 291,917 
(116,794) 
146.189 

321,312 
(417,912) 

96,600 

$ 268,775 
(106,346) 
141.847 

304,276 
(453.529) 

149,253 

Net Pension Asset, Begirming of Year 

Net Pension Asset, End of Year 

1,668,484 

$ 1,765,084 

1,519,231 

$ 1,668,484 

Trend mformation is as follows; 

Fiscal 
Year Ended 

Aimual 
Pension 

Cost (APC) 

Percentage 
of APC 

Contributed 

Net 
Pension 
Asset 

December 31, 2008 
December 31,2007 
December 31, 2006 

$321,312 
$ 304,276 
$ 205,790 

130% 
149% 
198% 

$ 1,765,084 
$ 1,668,484 
$ 1,519,231 
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Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of December 31, 2008, the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the plan was 69.28 percent fimded. The actuarial accmed liability for benefits was 
$7,954,134, and the actuarial value of assets was $5,510,943, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 
accmed liability (UAAL) of $2,443,191. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) was $4,969,489, and the ratio ofthe UAAL to the covered payroll was 49.16 
percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI followmg the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing 
or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accmed liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumption - Key actuarial assumptions include 7% interest compounded 
annually, mortality tables from the 1994 Uninsured Mortality Table for males and females, 
anticipated tumover and disability rates ranging from 0.11%) to 5.10%) based on age of employee, 
and salary increases of 5.75%) annually. The actuarial cost method is the aggregate actuarial cost 
method with allocation based on eamings. Asset valuation method is based on the current market 
value as ofthe last day ofthe prior plan year. 

Note 8 - Deferred Compensation Plan -

The System offers its employees participation in the Louisiana Public Employees' Deferred 
Compensation Plan (Compensation Plan), created by Louisiana Revised Statutes and in accordance 
with Section 457 ofthe Intemal Revenue Code. The Compensation Plan is available to all fiill time 
employees and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until fiiture years. The assets of the 
Plan are held in tmst for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. The 
custodian thereof, for the exclusive benefit of the participants, holds the custodial account for the 
beneficiaries of this plan, and the assets may not be diverted to any other use. The administrators 
are agents of the employer for purposes of providing dhection to the custodian of the custodial 
account from time to time for the investment of the funds held in the account, transfer of assets to 
or from the account, and all other matters. 

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingencies -

Contingencies 

The System receives financial assistance directly from federal agencies which are subject to 
compliance audits under OMB Circular A-133 (Single Audit) and monitoring reviews by the 
granting agencies. As a result, amounts might be subject to disallowance upon acceptance ofthe 
audits and monitoring reviews by the federal granting agencies. The Single Audit perfonned for the 
years 2004, 2005, 2006, and 2007 revealed cumulative questioned costs and estimated accmed 
interest payable of $911,239 and $141,625, respectively. Durmg 2008, the System repaid 
$431,377 to the FTA. In addition, principal and mterest of $355,012 and $109,877, respectively, 
were abated by die FTA. The remauimg unpaid questioned costs of $124,850 for tiiese years plus 
die estimated accmed interest payable of $31,748 has been accmed in these fmancial statements 
and is mcluded m tiie Due to Federal Transit Administration amount at December 31, 2008. This 
entire amount of $156,598 was subsequentiy repaid to the FTA on April 22, 2009. 
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The Single Audit performed for the 2008 year revealed questioned costs of $202,024. This amount 
represents duplicate reimbursements received from the FTA for the payment of a capital lease on 
the System's passenger vans. The liability for these questioned costs plus the estimated accmed 
interest payable of $16,863 has been accmed in these financial statements and is included in the 
Due to Federal Transit Admmistration amount at December 31, 2008. The questioned costs of 
$202,024 were subsequently repaid to the FTA on June 3, 2009. The repayment ofthe mterest is 
pending FTA's review of the amount due. Details concerning these findings are included in a 
separate smgle audit report dated June 17, 2009. 

Grant Commitments 

Grant agreements under which the system receives federal fmancial assistance requhe the system 
to match 17%)-20% of dollars received. As of December 31, 2008, the System has committed cash 
to fimd local matchuig requirements, however, additional fiscal effort will be required. Similar 
commitments existed as of December 31, 2007. 

Note 10 - Self-insurance and Legal Claims -

The System is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, damage to and destmction of assets, 
errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The System manages its exposure 
to losses through a self-insurance program. For quite some time, including the period January 1, 
2004 through August 31, 2004, the System retained liability for tiie fu-st $250,000 for general 
liability claims and workers' compensation claims. Excess general liability claims were 
commercially insured up to $750,000. Begirming September 1, 2004, the System cancelled its 
commercial policy and thus became self-insured for all bodily injury and property damage tort 
claims, in addition to workers' compensation claims. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, accmed 
clahn liabilities of $1,429,171 and $1,339,371, are hicluded on the Proprietary Fund's statement of 
net assets, as follows: 

Current Long-Term 
Portion Portion Total 

2008 $526,949 $ 902,222 $1,429,171 
2007 $559,958 $ 779,413 $1,339,371 

The accmals, which are based upon the advice of counsel, are in the opinion of management, 
sufficient to provide for all probable estimatable claims liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007. 
In addition, the claims will not be paid until appropriated by the System. Changes in claims 
liability during the years ended December 31 are as follows: 

Current Year 
Beginning Claims and 

of Year Changes hi Clahn Balance at 
Liability Esthnates Payments Year End 

2008 $1,339,371 $ 656,526 $(566,726) $1,429,171 
2007 $ 1,207,944 $ 937,234 $ (805,807) $ 1,339,371 
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Note 11 - Significant Sales Contract -

The System provides transportation services to Louisiana State University (LSU) under an 
agreement witii LSU's Board of Supervisors. Under this agreement, the System provides LSU with 
passenger buses, personnel, and supplies to operate a mass transit system. As consideration for the 
service rendered, LSU paid tiie System approxhnately $2,397,000 and $2,243,000 during 2008 and 
2007. These amounts are included in charges for services on the statements of revenues, expenses 
and changes in net assets. This contract will not be renewed beyond its current contractual term, 
includmg a one month extension, which exphes on July 31,2009. 

Note 12 - Capital Lease Obligation -

The System is the lessee of 28 Blue Bird transit buses and 5 Federal Coach vans under two separate 
lease agreements with First Security Leasmg, Inc. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases 
for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments as ofthe inception date. 

Changes in the capital lease liability during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as 
follows: 

Beginning 
of Year 
Liability Additions 

Principal 
Payments 

End of Year 
Liability 

Due Within 
One 
Year 

2008 
2007 

$6,253,121 
$ 6,843,799 

$ (602,855) $ 5,650,266 $ 632,868 
$ (590,678) $ 6,253,121 $ 602,854 

Minimum future lease payments under these capital leases as of December 31, 2008 for each of the 
next five years and each subsequent five year period are: 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2016 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: Amoimt representing interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

Amount 

$ 903,248 
903,248 
903,248 
833,704 
833,704 

2,501,112 

6,878,264 
(1,227,998) 

$ 5,650,266 

The mterest rates on the capital leases range from 4.87%) to 4.92%). 

Note 13 - Current Operating Environment -

As shown on the accompanying financial statements, the System experienced net losses before 
capital contributions of $668,127 and $2,027,562 m 2008 and 2007, respectively. In addition, 
current liabilities exceeded current assets m each ofthe years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 
by $105,887 and $1,021,773, respectively. Although much unproved during 2008, the System 
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contmues to anticipate marginal ability to satisfy current obligations in the normal course of 
business. 

The System's 2009 budget reflects the loss of significant revenue due to the expiration and 
nonrenewal of a major contract for services with LSU. Expenses, prhnarily in the transit 
operations and maintenance departments, will be reduced by reductions in workforce and service 
cuts to counter the loss of operating revenue as the result of the expuing contract. The System 
anticipates federal grant revenues, taxes, and transfers from the City-parish, all of which the 
System relies on to fund operations, will remain constant in 2009. 

The System plans to maintain a carefiil watch over expenditures to help alleviate some of the 
expenses attributable to transit operations, such as rising fuel costs and maintenance of vehicles. 
Overall, the System is budgeted to operate at a near break-even position. 

Note 14 - Concentrations -

Substantially all non-management employees are covered under a collective bargaming agreement. 

Note 15 - Prior Period Adjustments -

A prior period adjustment was made to restate the net assets of the Proprietary Fund as of 
December 31, 2006 for a correction of an error related to excise taxes paid on fiiel pmchases after 
the System elected to become a political subdivision ofthe State of Louisiana. 

Prior period adjustments were also made to restate the net assets of the Proprietary Fund as of 
December 31, 2007 for the correction of errors related to excise taxes paid on ftiel purchases, 
duplicate reimbursements received from the FTA, and 2007 ADA expenses reimbursed from the 
FTA m 2008. The prior period adjustments related to 2007 have been reflected in the 2007 
columns of these financial statements and are as follows: 

Proprietary 
Fund 

Net Assets at December 31, 2006 as 
Origmally Reported $ 3,767,391 

To Record Receivable for Excise Taxes 

Paid on Fuel Purchases in 2006 292.825 

Net Assets at December 31, 2006, as Restated 4,060,216 

2007 Net Loss After Capital Contributions, as 
Originally Reported (1,661,127) 

To Record Receivable for Excise Taxes Paid 
on Fuel Purchases in 2007 136,869 

(CONTINUED) 
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Proprietary 
Fund 

To Record Receivable for 2007 ADA Expenses 
Rehnbursed m 2008 431,378 

To Record Liability for Duplicate Reimbursements 
Received from FTA 

Net Assets at December 31, 2007, as Restated 

(173,164) 

$ 2,794,172 

The 2007 general ledger accounts restated are as follows: 

Balance at 
D 

Balance Sheets: 

Due From Other Governments 

Due to FTA 

Uru-estricted Net Assets 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Chanees in Net Assets: 

Supplies, Fuel and Other Bus 
Related Expenses 

Federal Operating Subsidy 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

ecember31,2007, 
As Originally 

Reported 

$ 632,690 

$ 1,052,863 

$ (579,021) 

$ 2,370,269 

$ 4,074,388 

$ 3,767,391 

$ 2,106,264 

Net 
Adjustments 

$861,072 

$ 173,164 

$ 687,908 

$ (136,869) 

$258,214 

$ 292,825 

$ 687,908 

Balance at 
December 31, 2007 

As Restated 

$ 1,493,762 

$ 1,226,027 

$ 108,887 

$ 2,233,400 

$ 4,332,602 

$4,060,216 

$2,794,172 
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Schedule 1 
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION UNDER GASB STATEMENT NO. 25 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

January 1, 2009 
January 1,2008 
January 1,2007 
January 1,2006 
January 1,2005 
January 1,2004 
January 1,2003 
January 1,2002 
January 1,2001 
January 1,2000 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Assets 

$5,510,943 
$ 7,612,995 
$ 6,936,692 
$ 6,305,722 
$ 5,584,893 
$ 4,986,296 
$4,160,734 
$ 4,244,806 
$4,113,469 
$ 3,752,507 

Actuarial 
Accmed 
Liability Unfunded Funded 
(AAL) AAL Ratio 

$7,954,134 $2,443,191 69.28% 
$7,749,081 $ 136,086 98.24% 
$7,223,985 $ 287,293 96,02% 
$5,768,124 $ N/A 109.32%o 
$5,428,930 $ N/A 102.87% 
$ N/A $ N/A N/A 
$4,309,796 $ 149,062 96.54% 
$4,763,742 $ 518,936 89.11% 
$4,113,469 $ N/A 100,00% 
$3,752,507 $ N/A 100,00% 

Covered 
Payroll 

$ 4,969,489 
$ 5,276,945 
$ 4,820,357 
$ 4,784,924 
$ 4,623,606 
$ 4,149,773 
$3,991,134 
$ 4,368,258 
$ 4,099,654 
$3,917,671 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Year Ended 

December 31, 2008 
December 31, 2007 
December 31, 2006 
December 31, 2005 
December 31, 2004 
December 31, 2003 
December 31, 2002 
December 31, 2001 
December 31, 2000 
December 31, 1999 

Aimual 
Required Actual Percentage 

Contribution Contribution Contributed 

$291,917 $404,011 138.40% 
$268,774 $438,443 
$175,115 $394,119 
$190,796 $355,099 
$174,075 $370,342 
$207,283 $350,140 
$217,556 $333,469 
$106,152 $297,684 
$ 100,051 $296,920 
$115,024 $230,118 

163.13% 
225.06% 
186.11% 
212.75% 
168.92% 
153.28% 
280.43% 
296.77% 
200.06% 

Unfunded 
AAL as a 

Percentage 
of Payroll 

49.16% 
2.58% 
5.96% 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

3.73% 
11.88% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF TREND INFORMATION LISTED ABOVE 

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date 
indicated. Additional information as ofthe latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation Date December 31,2008 

Actuarial Cost Method Aggregate actuarial method. Under this method, a separate 
actuarial accmed liability and unfunded liability is not identified 
or amortized. In years prior to January 1, 2003, the System used 
the frozen entry age normal method. 
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Amortization Method N/A 

Remainmg Amortization Period N/A 

Asset Valuation Method Current market value as of the last day of the plan year adjusted 
to smooth realized and imrealized capital gains and losses over a 
three year period by deferring one-third of such gains or losses 
accmed in the prior fiscal year and two-thirds of such gains or 
losses accmed in the current fiscal year. 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Retum 7% 
Projected Salary Increases 5.75% 
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June 17, 2009 

To the Board of Directors 
Capital Area Transit System 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

We have audited the fmancial statements of Capital Area Transit System (the System) as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated June 17, 2009. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General ofthe United States. 

Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In plarming and performing our audit, we considered the System's mtemal control over fmancial reporting 
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expresshig an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe System's intemal 
conti-ol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe 
System's intemal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of intemal conh'ol over fmancial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we 
identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, 
that adversely affects the System's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data 
reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such, that there is more than a remote 
likelihood that a misstatement ofthe System's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will 
not be prevented or detected by the System's intemal control. We considered tlie deficiencies described in 
the accompanymg schedule of fmdings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies m intemal 
control over financial reporting. These deficiencies are hsted as findings 2008-01 through 2008-03. 
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resuhs in 
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement ofthe financial statements will not be prevented 
or detected by the System's intemal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control that 
might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclosed all significant 
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, ofthe significant deficiencies 
described above, we consider items 2008-01 to 2008-03 to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the System's financial statements are fiee of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported 
imder Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management ofthe System in a separate letter dated June 17, 
2009. 

This report is intended solely for the information of management and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statue 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Respectfiilly submitted, 

j^a/rmiA) l l BaUA ĴidtaJj L L P 



INDEPENDENT AUDirOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLLWCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WFIH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 



Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP 
Certified Public Accoimtants 

2322 Tremont Drive • Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
178 Dei Orleans Avenue, Suite C • Denham Springs, LA 70726 

Phone: 225.928.4770 • Fax: 225.926.0945 
www.htbcpa.com 

June 17, 2009 
To the Board of Directors 
Capital Area Transit System 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Capital Area Transit System (the System) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement ihsLt are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 
2008. The System's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section ofthe 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the 
System's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the System's compliance based on 
our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with" Auditing "standards" generally'accepted'm the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States; and OMB Circular A'l23, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
System's comphance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the chcumstances. We beheve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe System's compliance with those requirements. 

As described in items 2008-04 through 2008-06 in the accompanying schedule of fmdkigs and questioned 
costs, the System did not comply with requirements regarding allowable costs and reportmg that are 
apphcable to its major federal program. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion 
for the System to comply with the requirements applicable to that program. 

In our opmion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, tiie System complied, 
in all material respects, with the requirements refeixed to above that are applicable to its major federal 
program for the year ended December 31, 2008. 

Intemal Control Over Comphance 

The management ofthe System is responsible for establishing and maintairting effective mtemal control 
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over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the System's intemal control over 
compliance with requkements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on compliance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe System's intemal control over 
compliance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the System's uitemal control that 
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed below, 
we identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies and others that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A control deficiency in an entity's intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, 
that adversely affects the System's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a 
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requhement of a federal program that is 
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the System's mtemal control. We consider 
the deficiencies in intemal control over compliance described hi the accompanying schedule of fmdings 
and questioned costs as items 2008-05 through 2008-06 to be significant deficiencies. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control. Ofthe significant 
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs, we consider item 2008-06 to be a material weakness. 

The System's response to the findmgs identified in our audh are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the System's response and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on it. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the fmancial statements ofthe System as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 
and have issued our report thereon dated June 17, 2009. Our audit was performed for the purpose of 
forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the System's financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
addhional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133, and is not a required part ofthe financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe 
fmancial statements and, in our opiruon, is fairly stated, in all material respects, m relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the infomiation of management, the Office ofthe Legislative Auditor, 
State of Louisiana, and federal awarding agencies and is not hitended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specific parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed 
by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Respectfully submitted, 

f̂ ammiA) Y. BOUA^MMJJ L L P 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Federal Grantor/ 
Program Title 

Federal Transportation Administration: 

CFDA 
Number 

Project 
Number Expenditures 

2006 Earmark, Capital 

Capital, Operating and Plarming Assoc. 

2003 Formula Grant 

2004 Formula Grant 

2004 Formula Grant 

2005 Formula Grant 

2005 Formula Grant 

2006 Formula Grant 

2006 Formula Grant 

2007 Formula Grant 

2007 Formula Grant 

2007 Formula Grant 

2008 Formula Grant 

2008 Formula Grant 

2008 Formula Grant 

20.500 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

20.507 

LA-04-0007-00 

LA-90-X239-00 

LA-90-X250-00 

LA-90-X268-00 

LA-90-X268-02 

LA-90-X281-00 

LA-90-X281-04 

LA-90-X289-02 

LA-90-X289-04 

LA-90-X308-00 

LA-90-X308^02 

LA-90-X308-04 

LA-90-X332-00 

LA-90-X332-02 

LA-90-X332-08 

$ 582,770 

25,921 

637,939 

78,303 

1 

70,147 

58,795 

14,724 

12,000 

965,855 

51,510 

248,137 

1,903,739 

25,906 

549,398 

Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development: 
Capital Assistance Program 20.513 LA-16-X002 

Total Federal Transportation Administration 
U.S. Department of Defense: 

Katrma Related Capital and Operating 20.507 

Katrina Related Capital and Operatmg 20.507 

Total U.S. Department of Defense 

Total Federal Award Expenditures 

LA-48-X005-00 
LA-48-X005-04 

5,225,145 

66,817 

5,291,962 

220,591 

_44L976 

662,567 

$ 5,954,529 

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Note 1 - General -

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of the federal 
awards of Capital Area Transit System (the System). The System's reporting entity is defined in Note 
1 to the financial statements for the year ended December 31,2008. All federal awards received from 
federal agencies are included on the schedule. 

Note 2 - Basis of Accounting -

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented usmg the accmal basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the System's fmancial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2008. 

Note 3 - Relationship to Financial Statements -

Amounts reported in die Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the amounts reported 
in the related financial reports. 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

(1) Summary of Auditors' Resuhs 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified, with an emphasis of a matter regarding the System's 
ability to continue as a gomg concern. 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(s) identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to fmancial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Intemal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(s) identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

X 

X 

X 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

no 

none reported 

no 

_x Yes 

X Yes 

no 

none reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Qualified 

Any audit fmdmgs disclosed that are requhed 
to be reported in accordance with section 510 (a) 
of Chcular A-133? 

Identification of major program: 

CFDA Number 
20.507 

X Yes no 

Name of Federal Program 
Federal Transportation Administration 

• The threshold for distmguishing types A & B programs was program expenditures exceeding 
$300,000. 

• The System did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

(2) Findings Relathig to the Fmancial Statements Reported m accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards: 



Significant Deficiencies were noted as follows: 

2008-01 - Excise Tax 

Finding: 

During the current year, we noted the System was not properly recording the receivable due for the 
excise taxes paid on fuel purchases after the System elected to become a political subdivision ofthe 
State of Louisiana. The failure to properly record the receivables for the fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 
2008 resulted in adjustments totaling $504,436. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend procedures be established and implemented to properly record receivables for excise 
taxes. We further recommend that the System prepare the retums to properly request the refiind for 
these taxes. 

2008-02 - Expense Recognition 

Finding: 

During the current year, we noted the System did not properly accme certain expenditures. 
Adjustments totaling $110,126 were requhed to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 financial 
statements for mirecorded liabilities noted during the audit. 

Recommendation: 

In an effort to present accurate financial statements throughout the year, management should ensure 
that all expenses are recognized when incurred instead of when cash is paid. Accordingly, payables for 
service should be recorded as the services are performed, and payables for assets should be recorded 
when the risk for ovmership has passed to the System. 

2008-03 - Grant Billing/Request 

Finding: 

The ECHO requests prepared by the System throughout 2008 were not based on fmalized monthly 
reports. During the current year, adjustments were posted to the general ledger for months in which 
ECHO Requests were previously submitted. These adjustments were not included in the following 
month's request. 

In addition, the System requested ADA reimbursement during 2008 using 2007 expenses. This 
reimbursement request was not properly recorded as a receivable at December 31,2007. This resulted 
in a $431,378 prior period adjustment recorded during fiscal year ended December 31,2008 to properly 
reflect these monies. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the System prepare ECHO requests based on finalized monthly reports. However, 
if subsequent adjustments are made which effect the financial monthly reports used to calculate the 



previous month's ECHO request, we recommend these adjustments be included on the next ECHO 
request. This would ensure the accuracy of funds drawn down throughout the year. In addition, we 
recommend that the System record receivables according to the accmal method and in the proper 
reporting period. 

(3) Fmdings Relating to Compliance and Other Matters: 

None 

(4) Findings and Questioned Cost Related to Federal Awards: 

2008-04 

Compliance Area: Earmarking 

Grant Year and Number: 2008 Formula Grant/LA-90-X332-00 

Total Questioned Cost: $10,988 

Criteria: 

One percent ofthe Formula Grant fimd apportioned must be made available for transit enhancement 
activities. 

Condition: 

The System did not earmark an amount equal to one percent ofthe 2008 Formula Grant for transh 
enhancements. 

Effect: 

The System did not comply with FTA earmarking requurements as the amounts were not set aside in the 
grant budget (scope). 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the System amend the scope of the grant to include a total of one percent 
allocation for transit enhancements. 

2008-05 

Compliance Area: Quarterly Reporting and Reconciliation of Reports 

Grant Year and Number: All projects reported under Schedule of Federal Awards 

Questioned Cost: N/A 

Criteria: 

Quarterly Fmancial Status Reports (FSRs) and Quarterly Narrative Reports (QNRs) are requhedto be 
filed with the FTA within 30 days after the end of each quarter. These reports should contain accurate 



and reliable financial data for the period reported. 

Condition: 

The System did not prepare quarterly reports based on ECHO draws submitted during that particular 
quarter. 

Effect 

The quarterly reporting did not accurately reflect the federal expenditures which were requested on the 
ECHO draws during the second, third and fourth calendar quarters of 2008. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the System prepare a schedule detailuig the ECHO requests for each calendar 
quarter. This schedule should be used to prepare the quarterly financial reports and narratives. 

2008-06 

Compliance Area: Allowable Cost 

Questioned 
Cost 

Estimated 
Accrued 
Interest 
Payable 

Grant Year and Number: 2008 Formula Granta:.A-90-X332-00 $ 230,885 $ 16,863 

Total Questioned Cost: $57,721 for 2008 and $173,164 for 2007, and $16,863 in accmed interest 
payable. 

Criteria: 

Eligible expenses should be requested hi accordance with FTA guidelmes. 

Condition: 

The System drew down funds for the capital lease of ADA Vans leased during 2005 in the amount 
available for the entire lease period. During fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008, the 
System also drew down funds for the payments made under the capital lease for the same ADA Vans. 

Effect: 

The System duplicated dmw downs of funds for the capital lease payments ofthe ADA Vans. This 
resulted in fimdmg for the same expenses being received twice. 

Recommendation: 

We reconmiend a schedule of all capital lease payments and drawdowns be maintained mdicating the 
date of lease payment and ECHO Request Number drawn down on. 

10 



CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

(1) Financial Statement Audit: 

Significant deficiencies in the prior years were noted as follows: 

2007-1 - Bus and Workers Compensation Liability 

Finding: 

During the prior year, it was noted that the System had failed to adjust the contingent hability related to 
the various bus and workers compensation claims. Upon our request, the accounting department 
contacted their attomeys and third party administrator to request the information needed to adjust the 
liability at December 31,2007. With our assistance, the necessary adjustments were made to adjust the 
liability to actual at December 31,2007. The adjustments recorded to the financial statements for the 
bus and workers compensation liability were $253,006 and $110,146, respectively. 

Recommendation: 

It is imperative for the System to reconcile these liabilities during the year as the amounts are material 
to the financial statements. We recommended tlie System work closely with their attorneys and thhd 
party administrator to reconcile these general ledger accounts to the estimated fiiture liabihty at least on 
a quarterly basis. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

During the current year, we noted that the System began to receive reports from theh attomeys and 
third party administrators on a monthly basis. We further noted that the year end adjustments were 
made and no material audit adjustments were required. However, we continue to recommend that the 
System reconcile these general ledger accounts to the estimated fiiture liability at least on a quarterly 
basis. 

2007-2 - Accrued Salaries 

Finding: 

Dming the prior year, it was noted the System's accmed salaries at December 31,2007 were calculated 
mcorrectiy. The System's calculation included two days of accmed salaries; however, there should 
have been nine days of accmed salaries at December 31, 2007. This error resulted in an adjusting 
joumal entry of approxhnately $130,000 which was recorded to the fmancial statements. 

11 



Recommendation: 

We recommended the System review the payroll period for which salary is being accmed to ensure the 
number of days included in the calculation is correct. This will ensure management that the financial 
information presented to the board is accurate. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

During the current year, the System reviewed the payroll periods for the time frame which was being 
accmed to accurately record the accmed payroll amounts at December 31, 2008. 

2007-3 - Fixed Assets 

Finding: 

During the prior year, the System performed a physical inventory of fixed assets. As a result of this 
inventory, it was noted that numerous assets were no longer in service but were still recorded on the 
fixed asset listing and the general ledger. The assets were either sent to the City Parish as surplus 
property or had been damaged and no longer m service. Also during the prior year, a vehicle was 
totaled and the System received insurance proceeds to cover the damages. These deletions were made 
to the System's fixed asset hsting, but were not posted to the general ledger. We proposed entries 
totalmg approximately $ 111,000 to delete these assets and balance the general ledger to the fixed asset 
hsting at December 31, 2007. Many of these assets were fully depreciated. Although there were no 
fixed asset additions during the prior year, the accounting department was not reconciling the fixed 
asset hsting to the general ledger during the year. 

Reconunendation: 

It is cmcial for the System's accounting department to reconcile the fixed assets listing to the general 
ledger throughout the year, as fixed assets comprise the majority of the System's assets at 
December 31,2007. We reconmiended that system persormel continue to perform an annual physical 
inventory ofthe fixed assets to ensure the fixed asset listing is complete. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

The System reconciled the fixed asset hstmg to the general ledger and made any necessary adjustments 
at December 31, 2008. The System has developed a sttategy to altemate the physical inventory of the 
different categories of fixed assets. In 2008, the System took an inventory ofthe radio equipment and 
made any necessary adjustments based on this count. 

2006-3 - Financial Reporting to Management and the Board of Directors 

Fuiding: 

Due to the numerous findings reported in the prior year, it was noted that management and the Boaiti of 
Dhectors are not receivmg a complete set of accurate and timely monthly fmancial statements. These 
financial statements should at a minimum mclude a complete balance sheet, income statement, and 
statement of cash flows. Also, a statement of budget to actual comparisons should be presented. 

12 



During the prior year, we were informed by management that the Board did not receive accurate and 
timely monthly financial information at every Board meeting during the year. 

Recommendation: 

It is imperative that all recommendations cited in our report be implemented so that as an end result 
accurate, timely financial statements can be generated and presented to management and the Board of 
Dhectors. This mformation can then be used to effectively monitor the financial condition of the 
System and effectively monitor actual amounts compared to budgeted amounts. 

Additional Reconmiendation: 

During the cxurent year, we noted that the System began to address the reporting process to 
Management and the Board of Dhectors. However, we continue to recommend that all 
recommendations cited in our report be implemented so that as an end result accurate, timely financial 
statements can be generated and presented to management and the Board of Directors. 

2006-5 - Lack of Written Accounting Procedures 

Finding: 

We noted that there is a lack of written accounting policies and procedures documenting the various 
cycles comprising the System's accounting/finance function. Written policies and procedures are 
essential to a strong intemal control system and accounting department. They are especially critical 
when employee turnover is experienced. 

The process to develop written accounting procedures began during fiscal year ended December 31, 
2007 and has continued during the current year. However, the procedures have not been finalized as of 
the date of our report. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended and continue to recorrunend the System finalize the task of evaluatmg the various 
accounting cycles and developing written policies and procedures for each key cycle identified. 

2006-7 - Compensated Absences 

Finding: 

There were various deficiencies and inaccuracies noted by us during the December 31,2005,2006, and 
2007 audits. 

We noted that there were various deficiencies and inaccuracies regarding accmed compensated 
absences related to the following items: 

• The time taken per the payroll leave records did not agree to the time taken per the accmed leave 
schedule. For such a small sample size, the number of discrepancies noted was considered 
excessive. 
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• Numerous employees had negative accmed sick leave balances and negative accmed vacation 
balances. 

Recommendation: 

Although the effects of tiiese inaccuracies appeared to be immaterial to the financial statements, we 
recommended a monthly review of all accmed leave time be performed by department supervisors; as 
well as the implementation of a policy that strictly prohibits advances of any kind regarding sick or 
vacation tune. We also recommended a more stringent effort be made to ensure that actual time used 
per the payroll records reconciles to the tune used per the accmed leave schedule. 

Corrective Action: 

The compensated absence balances were reconciled in accordance with the System's policies and 
procedures. During the current year, we were not aware ofany advances on unearned compensated 
balances and negative balancesdidnot exist asof December 31, 2008. 

2006-11 - Federal Grant Receivable 

Finding: 

It was noted that various planning expenses were submitted to FTA for reimbursement for the months 
of May 2006 - November 2006. These amounts were being requested under an incorrect grant number. 
As a resuh FTA did not pay these amounts to the System. These amounts totaled $61,612 and 
appeared to be still due to the System at December 31, 2006, and have been recorded as an accounts 
receivable in these financial statements. 

In 2007, the System received $7,818 ofthe above mentioned receivable and reversed the remaining 
$53,794 in error. The appropriate joumal entries have been proposed at December 31,2007 to correct 
the accounts receivable balance. The System failed to request rehnbursement mider the correct grant 
during 2007, therefore, the remaining funds in the amount of $53,794 were not received. 

Recommendation: 

Management failed to realize that these requested expenses had not been received by the System since 
there was a lack of reconciliation procedures in place whereby all requested fimds are reconciled to the 
actual cash receipts and the financial information reported in the FTA's TEAM reporting System. We 
recommended and continue to recommend formal reconciliation procedures be implemented to 
reconcile aU cash receipts to reimbursement requests and the TEAM reporting system. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

The receivables from the FTA for the planning expense requested under the incorrect grant number 
were requested under the proper grant and have been received durhig fiscal year ended December 31, 
2008. Procedures were implemented to track all ECHO requests m a receivable account which is 
reconciled with each draw requested and received. 
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2006-12 - Lack of Pledged Collateral 

Finding: 

As indicated in Note 2 to the December 31,2006 financial statements, the System failed to maintain 
adequate FDIC insurance or obtain a sufficient amount of pledged collateral for their cash and cash 
equivalents. At December 31,2006, the System was imderinsured by $494,019. This findmg relates to 
one ofthe System's custodial banks failing to pledge adequate securities on the deposits. This bank 
indicated that they were not requested by the System's management to have the securities pledged. 

In 2007, it was noted that the System did require then bank to pledge collateral for their cash and cash 
equivalents but at December 31, 2007 the System was uninsured and xmcollaterized by $9,324. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended the System more closely monitor the pledged collateral on all deposits and make 
sure the System's fiscal agents have pledged adequate collateral to insure all deposits. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

Pledged collateral reports are received on a monthly basis from each bank. These reports are reviewed 
on a monthly basis to determine the adequacy of coverage. 

(2) Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards: 

Findmg 2007- 4 

Compliance Area: Expired CMAQ Routes 
Estimated Accrued 

Questioned Costs Interest Payable 

Grant Year and Number: 2003 Formula Grant/LA-90-X250-00 $ 179,948 $ 11,134 

Total Questioned Cost: $191,082 

Criteria: 

CMAQ routes are only eligible for funding by the FTA for a three year period starting from their 
inception dates. 

Condition: 

The System requested and received inappropriate amounts from the FTA for three CMAQ routes that 
exphed during the 4* Quarter of 2006, smce exphation dates were not being monitored. These over 
rehnbursements were in the amount of $179,948. These amounts are m addition to the amounts 
reported hi the 2006 Single Audit Report. 

Effect: 

As noted above, the System was over rehnbursed $179,948 during 2007 for the expired routes. 
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Recommendation: 

We recommended a schedule of all CMAQ routes be maintained indicating their inception dates and 
expiration dates. These schedules should be monitored for upcoming expirations. This information 
should be communicated to the accounting department so no additional funds are requested upon 
expiration of routes. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

During the current year, no additional funding was requested in relation to these routes. CATS will 
maintain a schedule indicating mception and exphation dates of any future CMAQ Routes and will 
monitor this schedule on a monthly basis. During 2008, the federal govemment abated and/or waived, 
all amoimts owed including interest. 

Finding 2007-5 

Compliance Area: Quarterly Reporting and Reconciliation of Reports. 

Grant Year and Number: All projects reported under Schedule of Federal Awards 
Questioned Cost: N/A 

Criteria: 

Quarterly Financial Status Reports (FSRs) are requhed to be filed with the FTA within 30 days after 
the end of each quarter. These reports are based on information obtauied from the monthly ECHO 
reports and are requhed to be transmitted electronically through the FTA's TEAM reportmg system. 

Condition: 

The System did not submit the quarterly FSR for the first quarter of 2007. In addition, the quarteriy 
FSR for the second calendar quarter of 2007 was not submitted for LA-90-X289-01. Forthe quarterly 
reports that were submitted during the third and fourth calendar quarter of 2007, we attempted to 
reconcile these reports to the monthly ECHO request but were unable to do so. 

Effect: 

The System did not comply with FTA quarterly reporting requirements as the required reports were not 
filed or amoimts reported did not reconcile to the monthly ECHO information. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended management, amend all hicorrectly submitted quarterly reports with the FTA and 
implement new procedures to ensure that all mformation per the quarterly reports are reconciled to the 
monthly reports prior to subnussion to the FTA. Also, a file should be mamtained that contains a hard 
copy of the quarterly forms along with all supportmg documentation. It is hnperative that these 
quarterly reports be amended immediately. These reports serve as the primary tracking system of 
federal grant expenses and draw downs. 
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Additional Recommendation: 

The quarterly reporting process was not improved during the fiscal year 2008 due to employee tumover 
and lack of ttaining. We continue to recommend management amend all incorrectly submitted quarterly 
reports with the FTA and implement new procedures to ensure that all information per the quarterly 
reports are reconciled to the monthly reports prior to submission to the FTA. See finding 2008-07 for 
current finding related to same compliance area. 

Finding 2007-6 

Compliance Area: Quarterly Reporting and Reconciliation of Reports 

Grant Year and Number: All projects reported under Schedule of Federal Awards 

Questioned Cost: N/A 

Criteria: 

Quarterly Financial Status Reports (FSRs) and Quarterly Narrative Reports (QNRs) are requhed to be 
filed with the FTA within 30 days after the end of each quarter. These reports should contain accurate 
and reliable fmancial data for the period reported. 

Condition: 

The System did not prepare the ECHO request for the May 2007 expenditures in a timely maimer. 
Therefore, the quarterly reporting did not accurately depict the federal expenditures during the second 
calendar quarter of 2007. 

Effect: 

The fmancial reports submitted to the FTA did not contain current financial data that is consistent with 
the basis of accounting used by the System. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended that the System file aU of its financial reports on the same basis (accmal) as it 
reports hs financial statements and those reports should contain financial transactions for that same 
period. 

Additional Recommendation: 

The quarterly reportmg process was not improved durmg the fiscal year 2008 due to employee tumover 
and lack of training. We continue to recommend management amend all incorrectly submitted quarterly 
reports with the FTA and implement new procedures to ensure that all mformation per the quarterly 
reports are reconciled to the monthly reports prior to submission to the FTA. See fmding 2008-07 for 
current fmdmg related to same compliance area. 
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Finding 2007-7 

Compliance Area: Earmarking 

Grant Year and Number: 2007 Formula Grant/LA-90-X308-00 $ 43,138 

Criteria: 

One percent ofthe Formula Grant fund apportioned must be made available for transit enhancement 

activities. 

Condition: 

The System did not earmark one percentage ofthe 2007 Formula Grant for transit enhancements. 

Effect: 

The System did not comply with FTA earmarking reqmrements as the amounts were not set aside in the 
grant budget (scope). 

Recommendation: 

We recommended that the System amend the scope of the grant to include a one percent transit 
enhancement category. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

The scope ofthe grant was amended during 2008 to include the 1% earmarking requirement for the 
apportionment for transit enhancements. However, a similar issue occurred during 2008. See the 
current year fmding 2008-06. 

Finding 2006-15 

Compliance Area: ^ Passenger Counts 

Grant Year and Number: N/A 

Questioned Cost: N/A 

Criteria: 

FTA Formula Grants are based partly upon passenger counts. 

Condition: 

Based on our discussion vnth management, ft was noted that bus drivers were not keeping accurate 
records of passenger counts for the University bus routes. Based on management's investigation into 
this matter h appears passenger counts for those routes were greatly understated. 

18 



Effect: 

Management expects this under reporting of passengers to affect the amounts of funds made available 
to the System for the FTA Formula Grant since it is partly based upon passenger counts. Management 
anticipates the 2007 Formula Grant may be reduced by up to $300,000 due to this under reporting of 
passenger counts. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended that management have training sessions with the bus drivers to emphasize how 
critically important it is to maintain accurate passenger counts and to put in place a monitoring system. 

Additional Recommendation: 

We recommend the System implement a procedure to document attendance of employees who attend 
the various ttainings offered. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

Training for the drivers on how to operate the electronic validatmg fare box is mcluded in all new 
drivers training and the employee does sign a paper saying he/she has received traming on the fare box. 

The System signed on with the City-Parish to avail its employees to a variety of training courses at no 
cost to the System or its employees. Most courses are voluntary but some will be mandatory. The 
mandatory courses include customer service and sensitivity training. These will be documented in the 
operations files or the personnel file of each employee. 
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 



June 16,2009 

Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
2322 Tremont Drive 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 

RE: Responses to the Single Audit Findings from the year ended December 31, 2008 and follow 
up on the fmdings outstanding from the year ended December 13, 2007. 

FoUow up to the Single Audit Findings from the year ended December 31,2008 

2008-01-Excise Tax 

The System became a political subdivision ofthe state by Act of legislation on January 1,2006. 
The Act exempted the System from "all taxes and assessments whatsoever, including sales, use, 
fi^nchise, property, and mcome taxes." Since the Act did not specifically mention excise taxes, 
the System did not file for refund of excise taxes until 2008 when it obtamed an opinion from the 
Attorney General that excise taxes were exempt. At that point the Department of Revenue 
allowed us to file for refunds of excise taxes paid. 

The System must pay the taxes to the fuel supphers and then file for a refund from the state. This 
has been done on a quarterly basis since the initial refund for prior years. 

2008-02 - Expense Recognition 

During 2008 the System was batch processing all invoices received for an entire month and 
processing them at one time. In some cases the decisions as to what month an invoice was 
recorded in was not being made by the accounting department but by the operations department 
that was batching the invoices. This resulted m 2 invoices not behig recorded as liabilities at 
December 31,2008. The System changed its procedures m February 2009 to process invoices 
daily with the period being kept open ten days after the month end to capture all liabilities in the 
proper accounting period. 
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Also, certain legal fee bills which were behoved to have been included in the accruals of claims 
were missed in error. Processing of legal fees has been revised to ensure that this does not 
happen in the fiiture. 

2008-03 - Grant Billing/Request 

To account for the possibility of prior month corrections and/or adjustments affecting fiiture 
ECHO draws, the System changed to a method in November of 2008 whereby each ECHO draw 
is based on year to date expenditures less cumulative expenditures from the prior ECHO draws. 
Therefore, the year to date activity is reconciled with each ECHO draw. 

The failure to draw fimds on the 2007 ADA expenditures until 2008 was an error due to 
personnel tumover and lack of training. This has been rectified and procedures are in place to 
make sure all available funds are accmed to the proper period. 

2008-04 - Earmarking 

The oversight has been corrected and procedures have been put into place to ensure that at least 
one percent of each grant is earmarked for transit enhancements. 

2008-05 - Quarterly Reporting and Reconciliation of Reports 

We agree with the recommendation and procedures were put into place with the filing ofthe 
reports for March 31, 2009. Cumulative corrections were made on the March 31 reports 
indicating that prior period adjustments were made, 

2008-06 - Allowable Costs 

The questioned costs were the result of an error m 2007 on the part of a financial consultant who 
erroneously drew down funds as lease payments were being made on vans previously purchased 
under a federal grant. This resulted in duplicathig the amounts previously draw down. The 
System, due to employee tumover and lack of knowledge ofthe history ofthe vans, perpetuated 
the error mto 2008. 

The questioned costs amounts totalmg $230,885 were repaid to the FTA on June 3, 2009. Interest 
will be paid once final amounts are determined and billed by the FTA. 

We agree with and have implemented the recommendation. 
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Follow up to the Single Audit Findings from the year ended December 31,2007 

2006-3 - Financial Reporting to Management and the Board of Commissioners 

During 2008 the System continued to suffer from lack of adequate persormel and tumover in the 
accounting department. Accuracy ofthe financial statements presented to the Board on a 
monthly basis was improved in December 2008 with the hiring of a new CFO and in 2009 with 
the replacement of personnel in the accounting department by more experienced individuals. 

In addition, the System has already or will be implementing all recommendations cited in the 
Single Audh Report. 

2006-5 - Lack of Written Accounting Procedures 

Some progress was made hi 2008 toward developing written policies and procedures for the 
accounting department. Many aheady exist but they are not bound nor are they kept in one place. 
The accounting procedures will be part ofan overall Policy and Procedure Manual that will be in 
hard copy form as well as electronically. 

If you have any questions or comments please contact Gary Owens, Chief Financial Officer, at 
(225) 389-8920 ext. 308 or the undersigned at (225) 389-7705. 

Sincerely, 

Carol Cranshaw 
General Manager & Acting C.E.O. 
Capital Area Transit System 

cc: Honorable Mayor-President Melvin "Kip" Holden 
Mr. Christopher Tyson, President, Board of Commissioners (CATS) 
Audit Committee ofthe Board of Commissioners (CATS) 
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CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 

DECEMBER 31,2008 



Hannis X Bourgeois, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

2322 Tremont Drive • Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
178 Del Orleans Avenue, Suite C • Denham Springs, LA 70726 

Phone: 225.928.4770 • Fax: 225.926.0945 
www.htbcpa .com 

June 17,2009 

To the Board of Dhectors 
Capital Area Transit System 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

hi planning and performmg our audit of tiie fmancial statements of tiie Capital Area Transit System (the 
System) for tiie year ended December 31,2008, we considered its intemal control m order to determme our 
auditmg procedures for the purpose of expressmg our opinion on the basic fmancial statements and not to 
provide assurance on intemal control. 

However, durmg our audit we became aware of matters tiiat are opporttmities for strengthening mtemal 
controls and operating efficiency. The followmg summarizes our comments and suggestions regarding 
tiiose matters. This letter does not affect our report dated June 17,2009, on the basic fmancial statements 
ofthe Capital Area Transit System. 

Accounts Receivable 

Finding: 

At December 31,2007, several accomits witii over 90 day past due balances of approxhnately $10,000 
were noted on the accounts receivable aging report. There had been no recent activity on tiiese 
balances. There had been no review of these over 90 day balances from the agmg report performed by 
the accounting manager. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended tiiat tiie accountmg manager review the aging report on a monthly basis and follow 
up on any balances that have not been collected. Any balances that are deemed uncollectible should be 
written off only after all collection efforts have been exhausted. The approval to write off bad debts 
should be approved by the Board of Dhectors and documented in tiie Board mmutes. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

As of December 31, 2008, tiie System set up an allowance for doubtfiil accounts m tiie amount of 
$5,000. This allowance takes tiie amount receivable over 90 days into account. The System determmed 
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that no write offs are deemed to be appropriate as of December 31,2008. Write offs will be approved 
by the Board of Dhectors once the final determination has been made that an account is deemed 
uncollectible. 

Compensated Absences 

Findmg: 

During the prior year, it was noted that the accumulated vacation hours for some union employees were 
included in the vacation accrual calculation as of December 31, 2007. The uruon employees are not 
allowed to carryover any imused time to the next year. The time is forfeited ff not used; therefore, 
these hours should not be included m the calculation. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended management review this calculation in the future to ensure the accumulated hours 
for all union employees is excluded from the calculation. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

The System has setup procedures to msure that unused compensated tune for union employees is 
written off as forfeited as of December 31 each year. 

Payroll 

Finding: 

In the prior year, for three ofthe employees selected for testing out of a sample size of 40, it was noted 
that theh personnel file did not hiclude all ofthe necessary mformation relevant to employment. 

Additional Finding: 

In the current year, twelve ofthe employees selected for testing out of a sample size of 40, it was noted 
that their personnel file did not include all ofthe necessary information relevant to employment. 

Recommendation: 

We contmue to recommend that the System review all persormel files to ensure the appropriate 
documentation is included. 

Finding: 

Durmg the prior year, for three ofthe employees selected for testing out of a sample size of 40, it was 
noted that the employees were salaried. However, they still received holiday and overtime pay in 
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addition to their salary. We were informed that the System is currently reviewing theh policy regardmg 
this issue as all salaried employees are being compensated in this maimer. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended the System continue to review this issue and unplement a policy regarding the 
benefits received by salaried employees. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

The System evaluated their payroll policy regarding benefits received by salaried employees. The 
policy stated that its operation street supervisors are hourly employees that are guaranteed a minimum 
of 40 hours per week. If the supervisors work over 8 hours per day, these employees are paid overthne. 
If the supervisors actually work forty hours and are off on a holiday, these employees get paid 40 hours 
plus the holiday pay. If the supervisors work less than 40 hours in a week, the System uses accumulated 
compensated absence time to make up the difference. 

Finding: 

In the prior years, we noted that IRS Schedule 94rs (Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Retum) were 
not regularly being reconciled to the general ledger balances. In the prior year, it was noted that the 
94rs were filled out incorrectly by the System's third party payroll agency. This could have been 
prevented if the 941 's were reviewed by the accounting department on a quarterly basis. 

Additional Finding: 

In the current year, we noted that the System's accounting department is not reconciling or reviewing 
the quarterly 941 returns to the general ledger. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended and continue to recommend the Accounting Manager perform a quarterly 
reconciliation of all quarterly 941's to general ledger payroll account balances. This reconciliation 
should be reviewed and approved by the CFO. Amended 941 's should be filed as necessary for any 
incorrect payroll tax reports. 

Finding: 

Durhig the year ended December 31, 2005, for one ofthe employees selected for testing, it was noted 
the incorrect pay rate was being used. The employee was being paid $ 13.74 per hour when the correct 
rate was $13.36 per hour resulting m an over payment of wages for the 2005 year of approximately 
$430. 
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In 2006, for two employees selected for testing, it was noted that incorrect pay rates were being used. 
These employees were both paid $9.67 per hour when the correct rate was $9.39 per hour. 

In the 2007, for one employee selected for testing, it was noted that the mcorrect pay rate was being 
used. The employee was paid $14.35 per hour when the correct rate was $14.78 per hour. 

Additional Finding: 

In the current year audit, we noted one ofthe forty employees selected for testing was paid at lower 
than stated m the imion agreement for his/her position. This employee was paid a rate of $ 11.14 per 
hour when the correct rate was $14.01 per hour. 

Recommendation: 

Although estimated amounts of overpayments are not material to the financial statements, we again 
reconmiend a more stringent review of payments to employees be performed to ensure correct pay rates 
are being used. 

Fixed Assets 

Finding: 

In the prior years, we noted the following deficiencies and inaccuracies regarding fixed assets: 

1. Certain items to be capitalized were incorrectly expensed during the year. 
2. A formal capitalization policy has not been adopted and approved by the Board. 
3. A vendor designed fixed asset software program is not being used. Currently, all fixed asset 

schedules are being maintained m excel which results in a cumbersome method of calculating 
and recording fixed asset additions, disposals and depreciation expense. 

4. The accounting department had not been reviewing the repairs and maintenance accounts to 
determine if any reclassifications were necessary. 

Recommendation: 

We recommended a monthly review of all repahs and maintenance expense accounts be performed and 
documented to determine that all items are being properly capitalized with any necessary 
reclassification entries made at that tune. In addition, we recommended the board adopt a formal 
capitalization policy consistent with FTA and City-Parish guidelines. Lastly, based on the large dollar 
amount of fixed assets maintained by the System; we recommended the client purchase fixed asset 
software rather than using the current excel spreadsheet method. 

While the accounting software utilized by the System has a fixed asset module, h was noted by 
management that the software does not work properly. 
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Corrective Action Taken: 

The System reviewed all maintenance and expense accounts during 2008 to ensure that all items to be 
capitalized were properly recorded. The asset schedules were reconciled to the general ledger. The 
System reviewed all asset additions and major repair expenses to ensure consistency with the City-
Parish and FTA guidelhies. Management will document and request the Board adopt a formal 
capitalization policy as this was not completed during fiscal year ended December 31,2008. 

Fixed Assets are a large dollar item for the System; however, the number of additions and disposals are 
minimal. Although the System's management feels the current Excel spreadsheet accurately accounts 
for the assets ofthe organization, the System will actively pursue the purchase of a fixed asset module 
in fiscal year 2009. 

Information Systems Security 

Finding: 

It was noted in prior years that certain computerized security controls ofthe accounting systems are not 
functioning to theh maximum capacities, leaving CATS vulnerable to unauthorized use or access to 
critical financial data. The areas for seciuity enhancement include; 

1. Passwords for networks should conform to ISC Standards. 
2. Group policy should enforce thneouts after periods of inactivity. 
3. Maintenance and review of file access logs, 
4. Nightly backup tapes. 
5. Disaster recovery plan. 

Recommendation 

We recommended in the prior year and continue to recommend that CATS have a follow up IS audit to 
address the areas of concem listed in the previous report. Also, management should continue the 
process of implementing all recommendations of the IT specialist. 

Corrective Action Taken: 

The System recognized the importance of information systems security and hi 2008 hired an IT 
Manager on staff. The System has also been working closely with the City's IT Department and has 
implemented safeguards to keep the system secure. The System's management has reviewed and 
accepted the IT Plan, which includes short-term as well as long-term projects. The System will explore 
options regardmg an IS audit, which may be eligible under the City' s review. The System is confident 
at this point that all recommended controls have been put in place. 
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Additional Reconunendation: 

We continue to recommend as in the prior year that CATS have a follow up IS audit to address the 
areas of concem listed in the previous report. Also, management should continue the process of 
implementing aU recommendations ofthe IT specialist. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have aheady 
discussed these comments and suggestions with management and staff, and we will be pleased to discuss 
them in further detail at your converuence, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you 
in implementing the recommendations. 

This report is intended for the use of management and the office of the Legislative Auditor, State of 
Louisiana, and should not be used for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Respectfully submitted, 

yam/ruA) T1 BOUA^MWJ L L P 



June 29, 2009 

Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
2322 Tremont Drive 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 

REî Responses to the Management Letter from the year ended December 31, 2008 dated June 

S t It^s'JoTSo?'^'"' '^^"'^"°"" "'^'" """"̂ ' ̂ ^̂ "̂'-̂  '-^^ -p-'^-s <o *̂  

In a good faith effort to reconcile prior year findings and develop proper written processes and 
procedures CATS contracted with a Business to Business CFO/CIO to a c ^ C A T S CFO ^ 
was with the understanding that the contracted CFO would review current processes and ' 

procedures to follow, and tram Accounting staff, in order to comply with prior audit findmgs It 
T a r t m r c r r A i ' ^ of the contracted CFO to provide montiiy fmancial statemtmo th 
Board of Directors^ After several months, n was evident that the contractor could not comply 
with the terms of the contract and the contractual relationship was severed. 

In 2008 CATS again suffered from the lack of qualified accounting personnel and tumover The 
situation has begun to improve with the hiring of a CPA as CFO in December 2008^d the 
replacement, through attrition, of accounting staff with more experienced personnel 

CATS does understand that the responsibility for the accuracy of its financial reporting rests 
solely on its management. To that end, management feels it has taken significanJsteps in £ 
nght direction toward improving its accountability, policies and procedures. 

Payroll 

A n n t C f v ' ^ ^ r ' ^ ' ' " 2008 toward reviewing personnel files for completeness. With the 

X l e t e n e S " " ' ' " ' " """^ ' " ° " " ' ^ ' * ' P '^°""^ ' ^''^^ ^ " ""'^^ ^^^^ "e reviewed for 

Management agrees with the recommendations and has already implemented changes in our 
human resources and personnel areas to comply. '̂<"<BC!, m our 
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Information Systems Security 

Management agree with all recommendations and will consider performing an IS audit in 
conjunction with the City-Parish of East Baton Rouge, 

If you have any questions or comments please contact Gary Owens, Chief Financial Officer, at 
(225) 389-8920 ext. 308 or tiie undersigned at (225) 389-7705. 

Sincerely, 

Carol Cranshaw 
General Manager & Acting C.E.O. 
Capital Area Transit System 

cc; Mr. Christopher Tyson, President, Board of Commissioners (CATS) 
Audit Committee ofthe Board of Commissioners (CATS) 


